
STAFF MEETING MINUTES  
LANCASTER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

COUNTY-CITY BUILDING
ROOM 113 - BILL LUXFORD STUDIO

THURSDAY, MAY 26, 2016
8:30 A.M.

Commissioners Present: Roma Amundson, Chair
Todd Wiltgen, Vice Chair
Larry Hudkins 
Deb Schorr
Bill Avery

Others Present: Kerry Eagan, Chief Administrative Officer
Gwen Thorpe, Deputy Chief Administrative Officer
Dan Nolte, County Clerk
Cori Beattie, Deputy County Clerk
Ann Taylor, County Clerk’s Office

Advance public notice of the Board of Commissioners Staff Meeting was posted on the County-City
Building bulletin board and the Lancaster County, Nebraska, web site and provided to the media on
May 25, 2016.

The Chair noted the location of the Open Meetings Act and opened the meeting at 8:32 a.m.

AGENDA ITEM

 1 APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE MAY 19, 2016 STAFF MEETING MINUTES

MOTION: Wiltgen moved and Avery seconded approval of the May 19, 2016 Staff Meeting
minutes.  Avery, Hudkins and Amundson voted aye.  Wiltgen abstained from voting. 
Schorr was absent from voting.  Motion carried 3-0, with one abstention.

 2 ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

A. Legislative Resolution (LR) 439 (Interim study to examine the use of tax-increment
financing by municipalities for residential development) (Exhibit A)

MOTION: Hudkins moved and Avery seconded approval of the addition to the agenda.  Wiltgen,
Hudkins, Avery and Amundson voted aye.  Schorr was absent from voting.  Motion
carried 4-0.

Schorr arrived at the meeting at 8:34 a.m.

  

Page 1 BOC/STAFF/05/26/2016



 3 UPDATE ON PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION REGARDING AVALON EVENT
PARADISE AND HILLSIDE EVENTS - David Cary, Planning Director; Steve
Henrichsen, Development Review Manager, Planning Department; Tom Cajka, Planner
II, Planning Department; David Derbin, Deputy County Attorney

David Cary, Planning Director, said the Lincoln/Lancaster County Planning Commission voted to
recommend against approving special permits for Avalon Event Paradise (12788 West Roca Road)
and Hillside Events (12400 West Denton Road) (see Exhibits B-D).  NOTE: Both facilities are on
private land in areas zoned for agriculture and have been hosting weddings and other events.  Two
of the Planning Commissioners thought special permits might be appropriate, with conditions,

Tom Cajka, Planner II, and Steve Henrichsen, Development Review Manager, Planning Department,
said neighboring property owners expressed concerns regarding noise, traffic issues, personal safety,
litter, and the facilities not meeting the intent of expanded home occupation.  Questions were also
raised regarding emergency response times.  Hudkins said he was contacted by Marilyn Giles, an
area resident, to voice her concerns regarding noise, litter and people turning around in their
driveway.  Henrichsen said he will forward the Board links to materials and letters the Planning
Department received regarding these special permit applications.

Cary said staff tried to place conditions on the activity with both applications.  The majority of the
Planning Commissioners felt, not only was the use not in the spirit and intent of expanded home
occupation, but both applicants had a history of not necessarily following the rules all the way
through so there was concern they would not follow through with the conditions placed on them.

Avery asked whether any new arguments were presented at the Planning Commission’s hearing
other than those that relate to disturbing the tranquility of the rural area.  Henrichsen said the
concerns regarding fireworks were unique.  He added other applications for expansion of a home
occupation were primarily for inside a building, such as a cabinet maker, with activities taking place
during business hours rather than evenings and weekends.

Avery also inquired whether the applicants are in compliance with other regulations.  Cajka said they
are out of compliance with the zoning code and that is why they are requesting special permits.  In
addition, Hillside Events made improvements to the barn where events are held without obtaining
permits.  Henrichsen said the County Attorney’s Office, Planning Department and Building and Safety
Department have advised Hillside Events to not hold any events, due to safety concerns.  He said
Avalon has an existing boathouse which meets portions of the existing home occupation ordinance. 
The large tents where they have been holding weddings do not.

Schorr inquired about the applicants’ commitments to future events.  Henrichsen said Avalon
specifically stated it had only scheduled eight events for 2016, two of which have already occurred. 
Avalon has three small receptions scheduled in June that could comply with the existing home
occupation ordinance.  No events are scheduled in July and August.  Two larger events involving
tents are scheduled in the fall.  He said Hillside Events had previously indicated it has events
scheduled in June.  

Hudkins inquired about enforcement.  Henrichsen said it is suggested that any complaints be
documented and forwarded to Building and Safety for verification.  The County Board could then
hold a public hearing on whether to revoke the special permit. 

Page 2 BOC/STAFF/05/26/2016



Brief discussion took place regarding the restriction on number of employees (two working on the
site) in the home occupation ordinance.  Henrichsen said the applicants’ attorney proposed tracking
the number of hours employees who are coming on-site (florists, caterers, etc.) work and limiting the
total to 80 hours a week (equivalent to two employees working 40 hours a week).  David Derbin,
Deputy County Attorney, said he disagrees with the Planning Department’s interpretation of who
would be deemed an employee. 

Hudkins also inquired about the Sheriff’s  authority to intervene.  Derbin said Sheriff’s Office would
follow their standard operating procedure for responding to a party situation.

Kerry Eagan, Chief Administrative Officer, explained the next step will be for the Board to hold a
public hearing on the special permit applications.  Schorr felt that hearing should take place when all
five Commissioners are present.

 4 INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE (IRS) AUDIT REPORT - Tim Genuchi, Accounting
Operations Manager, County Clerk’s Office; Doug Cyr, Chief Deputy County Attorney;
Kristy Bauer, Deputy County Attorney

Tim Genuchi, Accounting Operations Manager, County Clerk’s Office, said the Internal Revenue
Service (IRS) has completed its audit and disagrees with how the County handled a settlement
payment to a former employee.  He said the County did not view the payment as wages and no
taxes were withheld.  The IRS indicated the County should have withheld taxes and is assessing the
County the amount it has determined should have been withheld ($11,418.32).  It was noted this
amount was negotiated down from what the IRS initially intended to assess.  Genuchi said the
employee will receive a W-2 form (wage and tax statement) and it will be his responsibility to re-file
his taxes.  If the employee signs a form stipulating that he paid the taxes, the County will receive a
refund for a portion of what it was assessed.

Doug Cyr, Chief Deputy County Attorney, said it was clear in the settlement that it was the intent of
both parties to the agreement that the payment would not be subject to tax.  He said part of the
complicating issue is that the agreement was intended to settle a number of issues, including that
the employee would not seek County employment again.  The IRS viewed it as wages rather than a
buyout. 

Wiltgen exited the meeting at 9:12 a.m.

The Board scheduled an agreement with the Department of the Treasury-Internal Revenue Service to
assess and collect additional tax in the amount of $11,418.32 on the May 31, 2016 County Board of
Commissioners Meeting agenda.

Wiltgen returned to the meeting at 9:14 a.m.

Page 3 BOC/STAFF/05/26/2016



 5 LANCASTER COUNTY VISITORS PROMOTION COMMITTEE (VPC)
RECOMMENDATIONS:
A) VISITOR IMPROVEMENT FUND GRANT APPLICATIONS FROM:

1) STAR CITY BMX INC ($10,000)
2) UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA STATE MUSEUM ($10,000)
3) LINCOLN PARKS FOUNDATION ($10,000)
4) CAMP CREEK THRESHERS ASSOCIATION ($11,570)

B) REQUEST FROM LINCOLN CONVENTION AND VISITORS BUREAU (CVB) TO
USE $180,000  FROM VISITORS IMPROVEMENT FUND FOR PROMOTION

C) VISITORS IMPROVEMENT FUND GRANT APPLICATION MODIFICATIONS - 
Julie Lattimer, Visitors Promotion Committee (VPC) Chair; Jeff Maul, Lincoln Convention
and Visitors Bureau (CVB) Executive Director

A)  Visitors Improvement Fund Grant Applications

      1)  Star City BMX Inc. ($10,000)

Julie Lattimer, Visitors Promotion Committee (VPC) Chair, said Star City BMX Inc. is requesting
$10,000 to make improvements to its track facility so it can be in contention for future regional and
national events.  The total project cost is $11,475 but $10,000 is the grant limit.  Star City BMX
indicated it can cover the remainder of the cost with normal operating funds.  She said the VPC
recommends approval of the request.

MOTION: Hudkins moved and Wiltgen seconded approval of the funding request.

Wiltgen inquired about the balance for the Visitors Improvement Fund.  Dennis Meyer, Budget and
Fiscal Officer, appeared and said it is slightly over $1,800,000.  He said there is $1,300,000 of that
amount that can be committed for this Fiscal Year (FY) 2016, adding $1,400,000 is committed for FY
2017 and $620,000 is committed for FY 2018.

ROLL CALL:  Hudkins, Avery, Wiltgen, Schorr and Amundson voted aye.  Motion carried 5-0.

       2)  University of Nebraska State Museum ($10,000)

Lattimer said the University of Nebraska State Museum is requesting $10,000 to build a parasite
exhibit for display between March-December, 2017 (see Exhibit E).  She said the museum has the
second largest collection of animal parasites in the western hemisphere and is the most important
systematic parasitology center in the world.  Lattimer said $8,000 to $10,000 in new donor funds will
be used to promote the exhibit and it is anticipated to generate interest in the study of parasitology
at the University.  The VPC recommends approval of the request and encourages the Museum to
create a digital display of the exhibit.

MOTION: Avery moved and Hudkins seconded approval of the funding request.  Avery, Wiltgen,
Schorr, Hudkins and Amundson voted aye.  Motion carried 5-0.

Page 4 BOC/STAFF/05/26/2016



       3)  Lincoln Parks Foundation ($10,000)

Lattimer said the Lincoln Parks Foundation, in partnership with the Lincoln Parks and Recreation
Department and the Lincoln Flying Disc Association, is requesting $10,000 to make improvements to
two public disc gold courses at Tierra Park and East Roper Park to allow it to host tournaments.  She
said the request is part of a three phase project totaling $50,900, with the first phase totaling
$21,170.  Lattimer said the Lincoln Parks Foundation plans to raise the additional funds needed to
finish the first phase and the VPC recommends approval, contingent upon the remaining funds for
Phase One being raised. 

MOTION: Avery moved and Hudkins seconded approval of the funding request.  Schorr, Hudkins,
Avery, Wiltgen and Amundson voted aye.  Motion carried 5-0.

       4)  Camp Creek Threshing Association ($11,570) 

Lattimer said the Camp Creek Threshing Association is requesting $11,570 to make improvements to
three buildings: 1) Pour a concrete pad by the church for a wheelchair lift; 2) Replace the roof on the
print shop building; and 3) Restore the livery stable.  She said the VPC encourages the Association to
continue to grow their annual Camp Creek Threshing show and consider more living history events. 
The VPC recommends approval of the request.

MOTION: Hudkins moved and Wiltgen seconded approval of the funding request.  

Eagan noted the request is over the $10,000 grant amount and asked whether the Association was
unable to raise the remaining funds.  Lattimer said the VPC felt because the grant request was for
the total amount, rather than the $10,000 amount, there was the ability to approve it as the request. 

ROLL CALL:  Hudkins, Avery, Wiltgen, Schorr and Amundson voted aye.  Motion carried 5-0.

B) Request from Lincoln Convention and Visitors Bureau (CVB) to Use $180,000 from
Visitors Improvement Fund for Promotion

Jeff Maul, Lincoln Convention and Visitors Bureau (CVB) Executive Director, presented a
recommendation from the VPC that ½% of lodging tax funds for January, 2016 through April, 2016
be released to the CVB to cover past and existing bid fees, having deemed that tourist facilities are
adequate (Exhibit F). The bid fees are as follows: $85,000 for Nebraska School Activities Association
(NSAA) Girls State Basketball Tournaments; $85,000 for NSAA Boys State Basketball Tournaments;
and $10,000 for Formula SAE, a student automotive engineering design competition.

Wiltgen inquired about the determination that the facilities are adequate.  Eagan said state statutes
are vague in this regard but said the VPC surveys facilities regarding future plans before making that
determination. 

MOTION: Schorr moved and Hudkins seconded to deem facilities adequate and allow the use of
Visitors Improvement Fund dollars for promotion, as presented.  Wiltgen, Schorr,
Hudkins, Avery and Amundson voted aye.  Motion carried 5-0.

Page 5 BOC/STAFF/05/26/2016



NOTE: A resolution in the matter of authorizing use of the County Visitors Improvement Fund for
visitor promotion covering the period of January 2016 through April 2016 in the amount of $180,000
will be scheduled on the May 31, 2016 County Board of Commissioners Meeting agenda.

C) Visitors Improvement Fund Grant Application Modifications

Maul presented preliminary revisions to the Lancaster County Visitors Improvement Fund Grant
Guidelines (Exhibit G), noting further clarification of Item 4f is needed. 

The Board recognized Lattimer for her service on the VPC.  NOTE: Lattimer’s final term on the VPC
will end June 30, 2016.

 6 VETERANS SERVICE COMMITTEE APPOINTMENT - Rick Ringlein, County Veterans
Service Officer

Rick Ringlein, County Veterans Service Officer, said William “Bill” Bowman’s five-year term on the
Lancaster County Veterans Service Committee will expire June 30, 2016 (Exhibit H).  NOTE: The
Veterans Service Committee consists of five wartime veterans who oversee the operations of the
Veterans Service Office.  He said Bowman has indicated he would like to serve another term and has
been endorsed by the Vietnam Veteran’s of America, Chapter 727.  Thomas McBride has also
submitted an application for appointment and has been endorsed by the Military Order of the Purple
Heart, Chapter 200.  The Veterans Service Committee has recommended reappointment of Bowman. 

In response to a question from Avery, Ringlein said the wartime service dates shown are what is
recognized by the State of Nebraska and are more broad than those recognized by the federal
Veterans Administration (VA).

The Board scheduled the reappointment on the May 31, 2016 County Board of Commissioners
Meeting agenda.

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

A. Legislative Resolution (LR) 439 (Interim study to examine the use of tax-increment
financing by municipalities for residential development) (Exhibit A)

Eagan said Senator Crawford and the Legislature’s Urban Affairs Committee have asked that
representatives from several counties, including Lancaster County, participate in a series of
stakeholder meetings over the summer.  Eagan and Hudkins agreed to participate on behalf of 
Lancaster County. 

 7 ACTION ITEMS

There were no action items.

 8 CONSENT ITEMS

There were no consent items.

Page 6 BOC/STAFF/05/26/2016



 9 ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

A. Agency Tours Scheduling Conflict (August 23, 2016)

There was consensus to reschedule the agency tours to September 15th, beginning at 1:00 p.m.

B. Management Team Meeting Agenda (June 9, 2016)

Eagan said information on identify theft will be presented.

C. Reference Schematic for County Commissioners

The Chair reviewed the Reference Schematic for County Commissioners (see agenda
packet) with the following updates:

• Fall Legislative Retreat will be held August 25, 2016 at the Lancaster County Extension
Office 

• Tri-County Commissioners’ Breakfast with State Senators will be held January 9, 2017 in
the State Capitol, Room 1023

Schorr exited the meeting at 9:57 a.m.

• Board members will talk to City Council members about the proposed change of zone
for the Community Mental Health Center (CMHC) Building.  NOTE: The City Council will
hold a public hearing on the zoning request on June 6, 2016.

• The final report from Robert Blair, Associate Professor, School of Public Administration,
University of Nebraska at Omaha (UNO); and Jerry Deichert, Director for the Center for
Public Affairs Research, UNO (Facilitators) on strategic planning has been provided to
Commissioners but has not been made public

• Gwen Thorpe, Deputy Chief Administrative Officer, is working on the Annual Report
• Eagan is still working on the Handbook for Elected Officials and Appointed Directors

and will consult Schorr
• Schorr will make arrangements for the Board’s next volunteer activity

Schorr returned to the meeting at 10:00 a.m.

D. County Participation in National Arts Program

There was consensus to support participation by County employees in the National Arts Program.

E. Lancaster County Board of Zoning Appeals Update

Eagan said he has confirmed that the Board appointed Herschel Staats to the Lancaster County
Board of Zoning Appeals (see March 10, 2015 County Board of Commissioners Meeting minutes) and
said the Board will need to amend the term for Jennifer Hiatt, who was subsequently appointed to
serve Staats’ term. 

Page 7 BOC/STAFF/05/26/2016



10 PENDING

There were no pending items.

11 DISCUSSION OF BOARD MEMBER MEETINGS

A. Lancaster County Fairgrounds Joint Public Agency (JPA) - Avery, Wiltgen

Avery said they approved expenditures.

B. Lincoln South Beltway Environmental Workshop - Schorr

Schorr said this was the final of three workshops and said discussion focused on potential
development issues.

C. Web Committee Meeting - Schorr

Schorr said the Committee reviewed the number of “hits” , by department, on the County’s website,
noting the County Assessor, County Clerk and Sheriff’s Office receive the most.  She said the Board
needs to appoint an additional County representative and suggested Brent Meyer, Weed Control
Superintendent.  Schorr said she also proposed changes to the County’s home page and suggested
the Board issue a press release asking amateur photographers to submit iconic photographs of
Lincoln and Lancaster County that could be placed on the website.

12 EMERGENCY ITEMS AND OTHER BUSINESS

There were no emergency items or other business.

13 ADJOURNMENT

MOTION: Wiltgen moved and Hudkins seconded to adjourn the meeting at 10:19 a.m.  Avery,
Wiltgen, Schorr, Hudkins and Amundson voted aye.  Motion carried 5-0.

_________________
Dan Nolte
Lancaster County Clerk

Page 8 BOC/STAFF/05/26/2016






















































